
 

AGENDA 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

Chesterfield City Hall 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West 

Tuesday, May 23, 2023 
5:30 PM 

 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 

III. MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 

IV. ROLL CALL –City Clerk Vickie McGownd 

 

 

V. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 
A. Monday, May 29, 2023 – City Hall Closed in Observance of Memorial Day 

 
B. Monday, June 5, 2023 – City Council Meeting (7:00pm) 

 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 
 

VII. OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3443 – An ordinance of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri 
establishing the Wildhorse Village Special Business District; making certain 
findings in connection therewith; authorizing certain actions by City 

officials and officers; and containing a severability clause. (Second 
Reading) 

 
 

VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 



 

 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 
purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s representatives 
and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 
610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf 
of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994. 
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN 
THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND 
AT (636)537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS   
 

A. Monday, May 29, 2023 – City Hall Closed in Observance of Memorial Day 

 
B. Monday, June 5, 2023 – City Council Meeting (7:00pm) 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 

This section provides time for the public to speak and express their views during 
public comment.  Each speaker is limited to not more than four minutes, after 
which, the City Administrator will indicate that their time has expired.  It is 

important to remember that this section of the agenda is not intended or appropriate 
for debate or question and answer period.  This is the public’s opportunity to share 

their comments in a public forum. 
 

 



OTHER LEGISLATION 
 
 
Proposed Bill No. 3443 – An ordinance of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri 

establishing the Wildhorse Village Special Business District; making certain findings 
in connection therewith; authorizing certain actions by City officials and officers; 
and containing a severability clause. (Second Reading) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

There is no unfinished business scheduled for this meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 



Memorandum  
Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 

 
From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning  
 

Date:  May 15, 2023 
 
RE:  Special Business District – An ordinance to establish the Wildhorse 

Village Special Business District and authorizing an election related 
thereto. 

 
 
Summary 

Wildhorse Village, LP has submitted a petition to establish a Special Business District 
(SBD) in accordance with the requirements of the approved Development Agreement 

between the City of Chesterfield and Wildhorse Village, LP. City Council previously 
approved a Resolution of Intent after receiving a petition. In accordance with the 
Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri, a public hearing will be held and ultimately 

an ordinance considered by the City of Chesterfield to establish the district. If 
approved, the City Clerk will coordinate to conduct a mail in election which would 
authorize a levy on the subject site to pay for additional services not currently provided 

on the site. The petition includes public maintenance under the SBD of the following 
items:  

 

• Maintenance, repair, and replacements of the Paved Lake Trail; and, 

• Maintenance, repair, and replacement of City accepted streets and on-street 
parking; and, 

• Maintenance, repair, and replacement of street lighting; and, 

• Maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaped center medians within 

• City accepted streets, including irrigation (to the extent they are separable from 
systems serving other areas not to be maintained by the City); and, 

• Security; and, 

• Legal, insurance, administration, and financial oversight; and 

• All other qualified and allowable expenditures of any other special district located 
within the City, established in accordance with the Special District Act. 

 

A map of the impacted area is shown on the next page. Only properties within the 
subject area would be impacted by the proposed SBD.  
 

See Bill No. 3443



Wildhorse Village – Special Business District  City Council Memo 

   May 15, 2023 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Additionally, a Survey and Investigation Report is required and provided (see Exhibit 
2). This report summarizes the services currently provided by the City of Chesterfield 
as well as the future costs anticipated with the development of the site. As the report 

demonstrates, significant impacts are anticipated to current City services and the SBD 
provides a method to fund these improvements without diverting funds from existing 

obligations of services. 
 
Attachments:  

1) Resolution of Intent 
2) Draft SBD Establishment Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BILL NO. _______        ORDINANCE NO. _______

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI
ESTABLISHING THE WILDHORSE VILLAGE SPECIAL BUSINESS
DISTRICT; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN ACTIONS BY CITY
OFFICIALS AND OFFICERS; AND CONTAINING A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE.

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield, Missouri (the “City”), is a political
subdivision duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the
State of Missouri, and

WHEREAS, upon petition by one or more owners of real property on which
is paid the ad valorem real property taxes within a proposed special business
district, the governing body of the City may adopt a resolution of intention to
establish a special business district pursuant to the Special Business Districts
Act, Sections 71.790 to 71.808 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended
(the “SBD Act”), and

WHEREAS, the City received a Petition to Establish the Wildhorse Village
Special Business District (the “Petition”), filed by an owner of real property
subject to real property taxes within the proposed boundaries of the Wildhorse
Village Special Business District (the “District”), which Petition is attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 1, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.794.(1) of the SBD Act, on
May 1, 2023, the City’s City Council (the “Council”) adopted
Resolution No. 484, as the resolution of intention to establish the District, in
accordance with the SBD Act, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.794 of the SBD Act, the Council held
a public hearing to consider the establishment of the District on
Monday, May 15, 2023 at 6:45 p.m. at Chesterfield City Hall, 690 Chesterfield
Parkway West, Chesterfield, Missouri  63017 (the “Public Hearing”), and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.794 of the SBD Act, the Council
caused notice of the Public Hearing to be published on two separate occasions
in a newspaper of general circulation not more than fifteen days nor less than
ten days before the Public Hearing, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the SBD Act, the Council caused to be mailed a
notice by United States certified mail, return-receipt requested of the Public
Hearing to all owners of record of real property and licensed businesses located
in the proposed District, and

3443



- 2 -

WHEREAS, at the Public Hearing the Council heard all protests and
received all evidence for or against the proposed action, all in accordance with
the SBD Act, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 71.792 of the SBD Act, the Council
conducted a survey and investigation for the purposes of determining the nature
of and suitable location for the District improvements, the approximate cost of
acquiring and improving the land therefor, the area to be included in the District,
the need for and cost of special services, and cooperative promotion activities,
and the percentage of the cost of acquisition, special services, and improvements
in the District which are to be assessed against the property within the District
and that part of the cost, if any, to be paid by public funds, and

WHEREAS, a written report of the survey and investigation was filed in
the Office of the City Clerk of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri, and was made
available for public inspection (the “Report”), which Report is attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 2, and

WHEREAS, the cost of the Report is included as a part of the cost of
establishing the District, in accordance with the SBD Act, and

WHEREAS, the Council seeks to establish the District in accordance with
the SBD Act.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Upon review of the Report and the Petition the Council finds
that the establishment of the District is in the best interest of the City and that
the property owners, businesses, and tenants in said District and the public in
general will benefit from the establishment of said District and the increased
level of services and improvements provided by the proposed additional tax
revenues from said District.  Therefore, pursuant to the SBD Act, the Wildhorse
Village Special Business District is hereby established, and will continue to exist
and function until dissolved by an ordinance of the Council.  The District shall
include the real property depicted and described in the Petition, as legally
described on Exhibit 3, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2. Pursuant to Section 71.800.5 of the SBD Act, the Council
hereby orders an election on the approval of a tax on owners of real property in
the District in a sum not to exceed $0.85 per $100 assessed valuation on real
property, tracts, lots, or parcels of real property in the District for the purpose of
providing revenue to the District (the “Proposition”).  Ballots on the Proposition
shall be mailed by or on behalf of the City Clerk by July 18, 2023, with the
election on the Proposition to occur on August 29, 2023.  The procedures for the



- 3 -

application of a ballot on the Proposition and the related election shall be
governed by the SBD Act.

Section 3. Subject to the approval of the Proposition in accordance with
the SBD Act and this Ordinance, the property in the District shall be subject to
the provisions of the additional tax described in Section 2 of this Ordinance,
which additional tax will have an initial rate of levy to be imposed upon the
property lying within the boundaries of the District of $0.85 per $100 assessed
valuation on real property, tracts, lots, or parcels of real property in the District.
Subject to the approval of the Proposition in accordance with the       SBD Act
and this Ordinance, the additional revenue generated by the additional tax will
be put to the uses described in the Petition and in accordance with the SBD Act.

Section 4. The Wildhorse Village Special Business District Advisory
Board (the “Board”) is hereby created by this Ordinance, and as set forth below.

(a) The Mayor of the City, with the consent of the Council, will appoint the
seven-member Board, which Board will make recommendations as to
the uses of the District to the Council.  Appointments to the Board will
be made via a resolution of the Council, except for the initial
appointments to the Board, which are set forth in this Ordinance.

(b) Members of the Board must be at least 18 years of age.

(c) Two of the seven members of the Board will be designees of Wildhorse
Village, LP, a Missouri limited partnership, or its permitted successors
or assigns in interest, as agreed to by the City. Five of the seven
members of the Board will be designees of the City.

(d) Each member of the Board will serve for a four-year term (except as
provided herein with respect to the initial members), with terms
expiring as of December 31st of the designated year or when their
successors are appointed as provided herein, whichever is later.  The
initial members will be appointed for the terms set forth as follows:  (a)
one member will be appointed for a term expiring                 December
31, 2024; (b) two members will be appointed for a term expiring
December 31, 2025; (c) two members will be appointed for a term
expiring December 31, 2026; and (d) two members will be appointed for
a term expiring December 31, 2027.

(e) The Mayor, with consent of the Council, may remove any member of
the Board for misconduct or neglect of duty upon written charges and
after a public hearing.

(f) Vacancies on the Board occasioned by removal, resignation, expiration
of term, or otherwise will be reported in writing to the City
Administrator of the City by the Board. The vacancy will be filled in like



- 4 -

manner as an original appointment, except that it will be done via a
resolution of the Council. Appointments to fill vacancies will be for the
unexpired portion of a term only.

(g) The Council hereby authorizes and approves the Board to exercise
those powers and fulfill such duties as are required or authorized for
such Board under the SBD Act.  The City shall exercise all
administrative functions of the Board.

(h) The Board shall, within thirty days of notice that the Proposition passed
at an election held in accordance with the SBD Act, fix a time and place
for its annual meeting.  At each annual meeting, the Board shall adopt
and then file with the Council a proposed annual budget for the
District, which shall set forth the projected revenues and expenditures
for the ensuing year; provided, however, that such proposal annual
budget for the District is only a recommendation to the Council, and is
not the final budget of the District unless approved by the Council.

Section 5. The Mayor hereby appoints and the Council hereby consents
to the appointment of the below-listed individuals to the District’s initial Board.

Name Initial Term
Expiration Date

City’s Chief of Police, currently, Ray Johnson December 31, 2024

City’s Finance Director, currently, Jeannette Kelly December 31, 2025

City’s Director of Planning, currently, Justin Wyse December 31, 2025

City’s Director of Public Works, currently, James Eckrich December 31, 2026

City’s Director of Parks, currently, TW Dieckmann December 31, 2026

Jeffrey Tegethoff December 31, 2027

Christopher McKee December 31, 2027

Section 6. Pursuant to the SBD Act, the Council shall have all the powers
necessary to carry out any and all improvements relating to the District
described in this Ordinance and the Petition, and as further described in Section
71.796 of the SBD Act.

Section 7. Pursuant to Section 71.808 of the SBD Act, the findings of the
Council of the benefits to be derived by the District, as set out in this Ordinance
and the Petition, shall be conclusive.



- 5 -

Section 8. The WHEREAS clauses of this Ordinance are hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Section 9. The Mayor of the City or his designated representatives are
hereby authorized to take any and all actions as may be necessary and
appropriate in order to carry out the matters herein authorized, with no such
further action of the Council being necessary to authorize such action by the
Mayor or his designated representatives.

Section 10. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Council that
each and every part, section, and subsection of this Ordinance shall be separate
and severable from each and every other party, section, and subsection hereof
and that the Council intends to adopt each said part, section, and subsection
separately and independently of any other part, section, and subsection.  In the
event that any part, section, or subsection of this Ordinance shall be determined
to be or to have been unlawful or unconstitutional, the remaining parts, sections,
and subsections shall be and remain in full force and effect, unless the court
making such finding shall determine that the valid portions standing alone are
incomplete and are incapable of being executed in accordance with the legislative
intent.

Section 11. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

Passed and approved this _______ day of ____________________, 2023.

________________________________                        _____________________________
PRESIDING OFFICER       Bob Nation, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]

FIRST READING HELD: 5/15/2023



EXHIBIT 1

Petition

(Attached hereto.)



HB: 4878-1276-7836.4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PETITION TO THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 
TO ESTABLISH THE 

WILDHORSE VILLAGE SPECIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 
 
 

Submitted April 26, 2023 
  



 2 
HB: 4878-1276-7836.4 

PETITION TO ESTABLISH THE 
WILDHORSE VILLAGE SPECIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

 
To:  The City Council, City of Chesterfield, Missouri (the “City”, and the “Council”): 

The undersigned, being an owner of real property subject to real property taxes and within the proposed 
boundaries of the Wildhorse Village Special Business District (the “SBD”), do hereby petition and request 
that the Council establish the SBD as described herein, pursuant to Sections 71.790 through 71.808 of the 
Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the “Act”). 

1.  Description of the SBD 

A. SBD Boundaries 
 
The boundaries of the SBD are:  The area enclosed by Burkhardt Place on the west and 
south, Chesterfield Parkway on the East, and Wildhorse Creek Road on the north.  
 

B. Map of SBD Boundaries 
 
A map illustrating the SBD boundaries is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A, and incorporated 
herein by reference.  
 

C. Name of SBD 
 
The name of the proposed special business district, to be established pursuant to the Act, 
will be the “Wildhorse Village Special Business District”. 
 

2. Purposes of the SBD 
 
The SBD may generally provide for certain services and public improvements listed in the Act.  
The SBD’s revenues may be put to use for all qualified and allowable expenditures allowed under 
the Act including, but not limited to: 
 
A. maintenance, repair, and replacements of the paved lake trail; 
B. maintenance, repair, and replacement of City accepted streets and on-street parking; 
C. maintenance, repair, and replacement of street lighting; 
D. maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaped center medians within City accepted 

streets, including irrigation (to the extent they are separable from systems serving other 
areas not to be maintained by the City); 

E. security;  
F. legal, insurance, administration, and financial oversight; and 
G. all other qualified and allowable expenditures of any other special business district located 

within the City, established in accordance with the Act. 
 
All of the foregoing qualified and allowable expenditures shall be spent exclusively within the 

boundaries of the SBD, provided, however, that legal, insurance, administration, and financial oversight 
expenditures may be spent outside the boundaries of SBD so long as they directly relate to the geographical 
area of the SBD.  

 
Also, the SBD may: 
 



 3 
HB: 4878-1276-7836.4 

A. Cooperate with other public agencies and with any industry or business located within the 
SBD in the implementation of projects within the SBD. 
 

B. Enter into agreements with any other public agency, any person, firm, or corporation to 
effect any of the provisions contained in the Act. 

 
C. Contract and be contracted with. 
 
D. Accept gifts, grants, loans, or contributions from the City, the State of Missouri, political 

subdivisions, foundations, other public or private agencies, individuals, partnerships or 
corporations. 

 
E. Employ or contract engineering, legal, technical, clerical, accountant, and other assistance 

as it may deem advisable. 
 
3. Type of SBD 

 
The SBD is a political subdivision of the State of Missouri with the power to impose a real property 
tax pursuant to the Act. 

 
4. The SBD’s Advisory Board 

 
A. In accordance with the Act, the Council will have sole discretion as to how the revenue 

derived from any tax to be imposed within the SBD, or any revenue derived from 
disposition of assets of the SBD, will be used within the scope of the purposes of the SBD, 
as described in this Petition to Establish the Wildhorse Village Special Business District 
(this “Petition”) and the Act.  
 

B. In accordance with the Act, the Mayor of the City, with consent of the Council, will appoint 
a seven-member advisory board (the “Board”), in accordance with the qualifications as 
established by law and as set forth herein, to make recommendations as to the use of the 
SBD.  

 
C. Qualifications 

i. Members of the Board must be at least 18 years of age. 
ii. All seven members of the Board will be selected by the City, appointed by the 

Mayor, and consented to by the Council. Two of the seven members of the Board 
will be designees of Wildhorse Village, LP, a Missouri limited partnership, or its 
permitted successors or assigns in interest (under that certain Redevelopment 
Agreement for Chesterfield Regional Area RPA-2 by and between the City and 
Wildhorse Village, LP dated as of April 18, 2023). Five of the seven members of 
the Board will be designees of the City. 

 
D. Term of Office: Each member of the Board will serve for a four-year term (except as 

provided herein with respect to the initial members), with terms expiring as of December 
31st of the designated year or when their successors are appointed as provided herein, 
whichever is later. 
 

E. Initial Members and Terms: The initial members will be appointed for the terms set forth 
as follows: (a) one member will be appointed for a term expiring December 31, 2024; (b) 
two members will be appointed for a term expiring December 31, 2025; (c) two members 



 4 
HB: 4878-1276-7836.4 

will be appointed for a term expiring December 31, 2026; and (d) two members will be 
appointed for a term expiring December 31, 2027. 

 
 

F. Removal: The Mayor, with consent of the Council, may remove any member of the Board 
for misconduct or neglect of duty upon written charges and after a public hearing. 
 

G. Vacancies: Vacancies on the Board occasioned by removal, resignation, expiration of term, 
or otherwise will be reported in writing to the City Administrator of the City by the Board. 
The vacancy will be filled in like manner as an original appointment. Appointments to fill 
vacancies will be for the unexpired portion of a term only. 

 
5. Life of the SBD 

 
The SBD will continue to exist and function until dissolved by an ordinance of the Council. If 
approved by qualified voters in accordance with Section 71.800 of the Act, the levy of tax on real 
property will go into effect in the tax year in which the election is held, and will remain in effect 
until repealed in accordance with the Act. 
 

6. Maximum Rates and the Method of Assessment 
 
The ballot question will be in substantially the following form: 
 

Shall the special business district of the Wildhorse Village Special Business 
District (“SBD”) be authorized to impose a tax on owners of real property in a sum 
not to exceed $0.85 per $100 assessed valuation on real property, tracts, lots, or 
parcels of real property for the purpose of providing revenue to the SBD? For 
purposes of property receiving tax abatement, the assessed value for each is at the 
current rate until abatement ends. The amount levied annually will be set by the 
City Council of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri each calendar year by resolution 
of the City Council of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri.  

 
7. Limitations on Revenue Generations 

 
The SBD will have no additional authority to levy taxes except as provided herein, or as provided 
by amendments to this Petition. 

 
8. Reports and Meetings 

 
The SBD will comply with requirements of reporting and meetings described in Section 67.1471 
of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended. Meetings will be open to the public. 
 

9. Severability 
 
If any provision of this Petition will be held or deemed to be invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable 
as applied in any particular case, or in all cases, because it conflicts with any other provision or 
provisions of this Petition or for any other reason, such circumstances will not have the effect of 
rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstance, 
or of rendering any other provision contained in this Petition invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable 
to any extent whatsoever.  

  



Wildhorse Village, LP, 
a Missouri Limited Partnership

By: Wildhorse VillagajjP, LLC, its Manager

Jeffrey J/Tegethoff, Manager
By:

[Signature Page to Petition to the City of Chesterfield, Missouri to Establish the Wildhorse Village 
Special Business District]

HB: 4878-1276-7836.4
5



 6 
HB: 4878-1276-7836.4 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Map of SBD Boundaries 
 

[Attached] 
 





Justin Wyse
Text Box
Exhibit A-2



EXHIBIT 2

Report

(Attached hereto.)



____________________________________________________________________________

TO: Mayor & City Council

Date:  5/5/2023

RE: Special Business District Petition – Wildhorse Village

SURVEY AND INVESTIGATION REPORT

The City of Chesterfield has received a petition to establish a Special Business
District (SBD) which generally encompasses the Wildhorse Village Development.
The creation of a Special Business District was included and described in the
approved Redevelopment Plan for the Chesterfield Regional Tax Increment
Financing District.  Although this specific petition only involves the Wildhorse
Village development, the same concept and requirements will be considered in
conjunction with the Downtown Chesterfield – Chesterfield Mall Redevelopment
areas as their development agreement is considered.

The purpose of this survey and investigation report is to determine the nature of
and suitable location for the SBD improvements, the approximate cost of acquiring
and improving the land therefor, the area to be included in the SBD, the need for
and cost of special services, and cooperative promotion activities, and the
percentage of the cost of acquisition, special services, and improvements in the SBD
which are to be assessed against the property within the SBD and that part of the
cost, if any, to be paid by public funds.

As has been discussed publicly and with City Council over the last two years, the
property owners within Wildhorse Village are desirous of transferring the obligations
for maintenance of “PUBLIC” improvements to the City of Chesterfield.  Acceptance
of those obligations would, of course, create both financial and resource deficits
within the City.  In fact, the improvements within the Wildhorse Village were initially
dedicated as private infrastructure, primarily due to the City’s ability to meet the
additional obligations associated with public improvements.  In submitting the
petition to establish the Special Business District, the landowners are, in effect,
funding the operation, maintenance, and capital replacement of the improvements
with self-generated SBD revenues.  This structure also benefits the City, in that it

Mike Geisel

City Administrator

690 Chesterfield Pkwy W

Chesterfield MO 63017

Phone 636-537-4711

Fax 636-537-4798

OFFICE OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR



Wildhorse Village – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
May 5th, 2023
Page 2

funds the increased municipal obligations associated with the development and the
subsequent resident and business which reside therein.  Please note, that once
created, the SBD is a perpetual special enterprise district which funds the provision
of municipal services.  Funds generated by the SBD are only those necessary to
provide for the expenses within the district and cannot otherwise offset any existing
municipal obligations or expenses.

The SBD petition requests that the City accept responsibility for:

 Maintenance, repair, and replacements of the Paved Lake Trail; and,
 Maintenance, repair, and replacement of City accepted streets and on-street

parking; and,
 Maintenance, repair, and replacement of street lighting; and,
 Maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaped center medians within

City accepted streets, including irrigation (to the extent they are separable from
systems serving other areas not to be maintained by the City); and,

 Security; and,
 Legal, insurance, administration, and financial oversight; and,
 All other qualified and allowable expenditures of any other special district

located within the City, established in accordance with the Special District Act.

The Special Business District petition anticipates and requests that the SBD would
assume maintenance obligations for the aforementioned activities.  It is not
anticipated that any land acquisition is required in relation to the Special Business
District.  The intent of creating the SBD is to fund, to the greatest extent possible,
the expenses related to the obligations described herein, where revenues are
statutorily limited to $.85/$100 assessed valuation.  Subject to voter approval and
approval by the City of Chesterfield, the City of Chesterfield would administer and
be responsible for delivery of these services.

Missouri statutes 71.790 through 71.808 address the creation and operation of
Special Business Districts.  Once a petition has been received by a municipality, the
City may adopt a resolution of intent to establish the district, as requested.  The
City is then required to schedule a public hearing and notify all owners of record of
real property and licensed businesses within the proposed district.  The City is then
required to conduct and survey and investigation, and file a report with the City
Clerk for public inspection, prior to the hearing.

This communication is intended to fulfill the survey, investigation, and
report requirements as outlined by State statute.  I have compiled
information from each department within the City of Chesterfield
governmental function and summarized that information to meet the
statutory requirements.



Wildhorse Village – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
May 5th, 2023
Page 3

Once the public hearing is closed, City Council may adopt an ordinance establishing
the SBD, establishing the initial rate of levy to be imposed and ordering an election of
the qualified voters to approve the SBD property tax and establishing an election date.
A simple majority of those voting is required for approval.

Geographic Description of the proposed Special Business District
The current land parcel of the proposed Special Business District consists of
approximately 80 acres of undeveloped land containing an 18-acre lake, with no
residential housing, businesses, physical structures, or public roadways, as well as
several parcels that are currently under construction.

A metes and bounds survey has been provided at the end of this report.

Description of Planned Improvements
The proposed special business district includes ~80 acres of which is to be
developed as a mixed-use development, including:

 More than 800,000 gross square feet of retail, restaurant, and amenity space;
and,

 Public Streets, landscaped islands, streetlighting, sidewalks, on-street
parking, irrigation; and,

 A paved lake trail; and,
 Over 635 luxury residential units of varying typology, ownership and density.

Development of Wildhorse Village is anticipated to include 635 residential units and
801,000 square feet of commercial uses (office, hotel, retail, restaurant). In preparing
this analysis, this level of development is used but it should be noted that existing
zoning on the site allows for more density to be allocated throughout the development.
As such, this analysis provides an assessment based on the planned densities at the
time of analysis.

Existing Levels of Service
Missouri statute 71.798 clearly restricts any city creating a special district from using
SBD revenues to decrease the existing level of publicly funded services.  Accordingly,
it is critically important to develop and document the current level of effort and public
services required within the proposed Special Business District.

The existing site is approximately 80 acres and is developing from an agricultural
land use with an 18-acre private lake.  There is no existing vertical development, no
residential housing, no retail, no licensed businesses, no public roadways, no public
recreational facilities.  Other than the perimeter patrols by law enforcement, or
perhaps an occasional inquiry for code enforcement, there are no municipal services
dedicated to this area.  Budget analysis has been developed to reflect the additional



Wildhorse Village – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
May 5th, 2023
Page 4

level of service and the new resources required to provide the necessary capacity to
provide a high level of municipal services and oversight.

Concept plan for Special Business District (RPA – 2)


 82 acres
 Agricultural with 18-acre private lake
 No vertical development
 No residential housing
 No public roadways
 No public recreational facilities
 No licensed businesses



Wildhorse Village – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
May 5th, 2023
Page 5

Description of obligations to be funded by the Wildhorse Village SBD
 Maintenance, repair, and replacements of Paved Lake Trail; and
 Maintenance. repair, and replacement of accepted streets and on-street

parking; and,
 Maintenance, repair, and replacement of street lighting; and,
 Maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaped center medians within

accepted streets, including irrigation (to the extent they are separable from
systems serving other areas not to be maintained by the City under the
provisions of the Special Business District; and,

 Dedicated commissioned law enforcement; and,
 Legal, insurance, administration, and financial oversight; and,
 All other qualified and allowable expenditures of any other special district

located within the City, established in accordance with the Special District Act.

Special Business District Revenues
When developing the cost-benefit analysis for the Chesterfield Regional Tax
Increment Financing District, PGAV included projections for revenue generation for
the proposed business district, in each development area.  For the purposes of this
analysis, we have utilized the PGAV study’s results for predicting the revenue which
is anticipated from the proposed special business district.

Estimated future expenditures
For the purpose of this survey and investigation report, each municipal department
was tasked with estimating the cost of providing services and maintaining the
facilities as proposed by the SBD petition.  It should be noted and understood that
acceptance of these maintenance responsibilities is expected to occur as of
1/1/2025, and it is understood that the development will still be in progress at that
time.  Full development is not expected to be completed for several years.  While
each department completed budgetary estimates for the cost to provide services to
this defined area in the fully developed condition, we also assumed that the ultimate
level of service would not occur on 1/1/2025, but at some future date as the
development progresses.  Obviously, that assumption parallels the revenue
generation for the SBD.

The costs described in each department’s analysis is not intended to reflect a future
annual budget request, but a current representation of those departmental

EST. WILDHORSE VILLAGE TOTAL SBD REVENUE
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

$393,893 $673,057 $905,164 $925,888 $934,552



Wildhorse Village – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
May 5th, 2023
Page 6

expenditures that would be expected.  The individual breakdown of expenditures
between personnel, contractual, commodities, and capital will certainly vary.  In
addition, amounts for Capital replacement represent future annualized costs, but
are not intended to represent an expense in a specific year. Finally, it should be
clear that SBD budgets must be reconciled with annual revenues and fund
balances.  It should also be understood that the mode of providing these services
has not been finalized.  It may well be the case that public works determines that
street maintenance within the SBD should be conducted by contractual methods as
contrasted to doing so with in-house forces.  Similar management decisions would
be considered in each area.  Those decisions would be made prior to the initiation of
any municipal obligations.

Five-year expenditure estimate, 2024 - 2028
Individual narrative budgetary estimates are provided for each department and
individual tables are provided summarizing the expenses assuming that the
maintenance and service obligations are effective as of 1/1/2025 with development
in progress, not yet having achieved full build-out.

 Public Works (Streets, street lighting, on-street parking, Contract vs staffing)
 Parks (Paved lake trail, trash, landscaping, irrigation, supplies, vehicles, fuel,

equipment, and capital)
 Law enforcement (patrol officers, vehicles, management, equipment, training,

fuel & supplies, vehicle maintenance)
 Finance (audits, book-keeping, reporting, billing, accounts receivable,

accounts payable)
 Planning (planning and permitting)
 Information Technology
 Capital Replacement fund (annual amounts accumulating to fund capital

costs when required)

Individual departmental reports are further broken down into expenditure
categories, for analysis purposes only, as follows:

 Personnel
 Contractual
 Commodities
 Capital
 Annualized Capital needs

In addition to the individual departmental analysis, we compared the results with the
pro-rata share of total municipal service expenditures, by population, by households,
and by non-retail square feet. In summary, on a pro-rata basis only:

The 2023 total approved budget for the six municipal functional areas is $39,066,869.



Wildhorse Village – Special Business District
Survey and Investigation Report
May 5th, 2023
Page 7

On a household based pro-rata comparison:
The SBD is anticipated to add 656 households.  That represents 3.24% of the
current 20,254 estimated Chesterfield households.
3.24% of $39,066,869 is $1.265 million annually.

On a population based pro-rata comparison:
The SBD is anticipated to add 1,771 people.  That represents 3.54% of the current
Chesterfield population per census.
3.54% of $39,066,869 is $1.383 million annually.

On a non-retail based pro-rata comparison:
The SBD is anticipated to add 801,000 square feet of non-retail space.  That
represents 3.91% of the current Chesterfield 20,500,000 non-retail space.
3.96% of $39,066,869 is $1.526 million annually.

It is clear from the pro-rata comparisons that individual department estimates are
reasonable and are not overstated.  The departmental estimates also reflect that the
expenditures are not expanded linearly, that a portion of the overall expenditures are
fixed over-head and embedded expenditures that would not increase proportionally
with the addition of the SBD.

Finally, it should also be noted that there are other revenues, albeit limited, that will
be derived from the development.  There will certainly be a nominal increase in utility
taxes, although it should be recognized that 50% of any increase is to be directed
towards the Chesterfield Regional TIF.  The City of Chesterfield receives no property
taxes, so there are no associated increases in municipal property taxes from the
development.  Finally, much like the utility taxes, the development will generate
additional sales taxes, although the total proportion of retail space within the
southwest quadrant is not expected to increase significantly.  Regardless, the
development will generate additional sales taxes.  However, it should be acknowledged
that the City will not receive the additional proportion of the County-wide sales tax
until after the 2030 census.  With regard to the local 1% sales tax, 50% of any increase
will be diverted to the Chesterfield Regional TIF.

Conclusion:
Based upon our rigorous analysis, it is clear that the SBD is expected to adequately
fund the services requested in the landowner’s petition.  Clearly the SBD allows the
City to provide the necessary services to the landowners, residents, and businesses
withing the development footprint, but it is also beneficial to the existing businesses
and residents of Chesterfield in that their service levels are not detrimentally impacted
by the increased demands.



Legal Description for Special Business District (RPA-2)

RPA 2 Description South – Metes and Bounds

A tract of land being part of U.S. Surveys 123, 415 and 2031, in Township 45 North,
Range 4 East, of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County,
Missouri, and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the western corner of Burkhardt Place as dedicated by Plat Book 283
Page 37 of the above said county records, also being the southern corner of Burkhardt
Place as dedicated by Deed Book 23588 Page 3666 of said county records, being on a
curve to the left having a radius of 775.00 feet; thence the following courses and
distances along the south and west lines of that part of Burkhardt Place, dedicated by
Deed Book 23588 Page 3666: along said curve an arc distance of 342.59 feet, and a
chord which bears South 80 degrees 42 minutes 32 seconds West, 339.80 feet, to a
point of reverse curve having a radius of 405.00 feet; along said curve an arc distance
of 805.88 feet and a chord which bears North 44 degrees 41 minutes 16 seconds West,
679.37 feet to a point of reverse curve having a radius of 925.00 feet; along said curve
an arc distance of 845.69 feet and a chord which bears North 13 degrees 54 minutes 04
seconds West, 816.55 feet to a point of reverse curve having a radius of 405.00 feet;
and along said curve an arc distance of 346.17 feet and a chord which bears North 15
degrees 35 minutes 22 seconds West, 335.72 feet, thence crossing said Burkhardt
Place, South 81 degrees 10 minutes 37 seconds East, 60.00 feet to the east right-of-
way of said Burkhardt Place; thence North 07 degrees 22 minutes 28 seconds East,
9.88 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a radius of 84.61 feet; along said
curve with an arc length of 89.68 feet and a chord which bears North 38 degrees 52
minutes 37 seconds East, 85.54 feet;  thence North 67 degrees 50 minutes 19 seconds
East, 2.34 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a radius of 95.00 feet;
along said curve with an arc length of 24.21 feet and a chord which bears North 75
degrees 08 minutes 22 seconds East, 24.14 feet to its intersection with the south right-
of-way line of Wildhorse Creek Road, variable width; said point also being the beginning
of a curve to the left having a radius of 996.00 feet; thence along said right-of-way line
the following courses and distances: along said curve with an arc length of 493.99 feet
and a chord which bears North 86 degrees 48 minutes 46 seconds East, 488.94 feet;
North 78 degrees 50 minutes 50 seconds East, 52.73 feet to the beginning of a curve to
the right having a radius of 907.00 feet; along said curve with an length of 93.30 and a
chord which bears North 71 degrees 21 minutes 25 seconds East, 93.26 feet;
continuing along last said curve with an arc length of 320.45 feet and a chord which
bears North 84 degrees  25 minutes 32 seconds East, 318.79 feet; North 04 degrees 32
minutes 49 seconds East, 11.26 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a
radius of 95.00 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 9.03 feet and a chord which
bears South 89 degrees 53 minutes 38 seconds East, 9.03 feet, to a curve to the right
having a radius of 919.00 feet; along said curve an arc distance of 444.54 feet and a
chord which bears South 71 degrees 02 minutes 03 seconds East, 440.22 feet to a



compound curve to the right having a radius of 1,098.00 feet; along said curve an arc
distance of 170.98 feet and a chord which bears South 51 degrees 20 minutes 36
seconds East, 170.81 feet; South 00 degrees 43 minutes 13 seconds West, 4.66 feet;
South 44 degrees 16 minutes 55 seconds East, 216.96 feet; South 33 degrees 41
minutes 57 seconds East, 12.47 feet to a curve to the left having a radius of 2,917.00
feet; along said curve an arc distance of 39.59 feet and a chord which bears South 48
degrees 37 minutes 01 second East, 39.59 feet; South 49 degrees 00 minutes 20
seconds East, 14.56 feet to a curve to the right having a radius of 90.00 feet; along said
curve an arc distance of 9.51 feet and a chord which bears South 45 degrees 58
minutes 48 seconds East, 9.50 feet; South 40 degrees 25 minutes 28 seconds West,
7.17 feet; South 49 degrees 40 minutes 30 seconds East, 112.49 feet to a curve to the
left having a radius of 1,959.86 feet; along said curve an arc distance of 300.82 feet and
a chord which bears South 54 degrees 04 minutes 45 seconds East, 300.52 feet; South
58 degrees 25 minutes 45 seconds East, 164.17 feet to a curve to the left having a
radius of 1,959.86 feet; and along said curve an arc distance of 84.52 feet and a chord
which bears South 59 degrees 40 minutes 44 seconds East, 84.52 feet, to the west right
of way line of Chesterfield Parkway West, variable width; thence the following courses
and distances along said west right of way line: South 17 degrees 50 minutes 47
seconds East, 135.74 feet to a curve to the left having a radius of 1,186.50 feet; along
said curve  an arc distance of 147.63 feet and a chord which bears South 20 degrees
47 minutes 02 seconds West, 147.53 feet to a  compound curve to the left having a
radius of 1,111.48 feet; along said curve an arc distance of 118.41 feet and a chord
which bears South 20 degrees 12 minutes 06 seconds West,118.36 feet, to a
compound curve to the left having a radius of 1,198.50 feet; along said curve an arc
distance of 32.18 feet and a chord which bears South 10 degrees 47 minutes 26
seconds West,32.18 feet; South 10 degrees 03 minutes 12 seconds West, 183.22 feet
to a curve to the right having a radius of 45.00 feet; along said curve an arc distance of
33.64 feet and a chord which bears South 11 degrees 21 minutes 48 seconds East,
32.86 feet; South 10 degrees 03 minutes 12 seconds West, 773.91 feet; South 16
degrees 05 minutes 44 seconds West, 114.01 feet; South 10 degrees 03 minutes 12
seconds West, 94.07 feet to a curve to the right having a radius of 197.50 feet; along
said curve to the right an arc distance of 32.29 feet and a chord which bears South 14
degrees 44 minutes 13 seconds West,32.25 feet to a compound curve to the right
having a radius of 47.50 feet; and along said curve an arc length of 62.88 feet and a
chord which bears South 57 degrees 20 minutes 29 seconds West, 58.38 feet, to the
north right of way line of above said Burkhardt Place; thence crossing Burkhardt Place,
South 07 degrees 02 minutes 44 seconds East, 59.71 feet to the south right of way line
of said Burkhardt Place, said point also being on the beginning of a curve to the right
having a radius of 330.23 feet; thence along said south right-of-way line and its
extension across intersecting streets, the following courses and distances: along said
curve an arc distance of 281.12 feet and a chord which bears North 55 degrees 46
minutes 38 seconds West, 272.71 feet; North 31 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds West,
472.64 feet to a curve to the left having a radius of 525.00 feet; along said curve an arc



distance of 325.17 feet and a chord which bears North 49 degrees 10 minutes 59
seconds West, 320.00 feet to a compound curve having a radius of 775.00 feet; and
along said curve with an length of 266.48 feet and a chord which bears North 76
degrees 46 minutes 38 seconds West, 265.17 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 3,598,381 square feet or 82.607 acres, more or less.





Wildhorse Village
Special Business District

Financial Summary

                                                   SBD PROJECT -  BUDGET COMPILATION

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
PERSONNEL* $112,533 $422,638 $524,844 $633,879 $654,328

CONTRACTUAL $41,152 $156,924 $209,680 $262,604 $290,619

COMMODITIES $53,201 $94,499 $98,573 $102,865 $107,298

CAPITAL $0 $14,010 $12,875 $13,261 $13,659

ANNUALIZED $0 $24,500 $26,675 $29,131 $31,910
CAPITAL NEEDS

TOTAL $206,887 $712,571 $872,647 $1,041,741 $1,097,814

REVENUES $393,893 $673,057 $905,164 $925,888 $934,552
AT $.85/$100 ASSESSED VALUATION

FIVE YEAR
NET

NET $187,007 ($39,514) $32,517 ($115,853) ($163,262) ($99,105)

* PERSONNEL - these values represent labor effort that

49,999 656 2.7
2023 Approved Budget Per capita res. units ppl per unit

$12,761,816 Police $255 $167,438 $452,084
$12,681,434 Public Works $254 $166,384 $449,236
$1,168,233 Info Tech $23 $15,328 $41,384
$8,743,696 Parks $175 $114,720 $309,743

$921,300 Planning $18 $12,088 $32,637
$2,790,390 Fin-Admin $56 $36,611 $98,849

City-wide this Development Pro-rata share
$39,066,869 population $781 $512,568 $1,383,932 3.54% Of City Budget
$39,066,869 non-retail Sq. Ft. 20,500,000 801,000 $1,526,466 3.91% Of City Budget
$39,066,869 # households 20,254 656 $1,265,324 3.24% Of City Budget



Wildhorse Village Special Business District
Estimated Law Enforcement Expenditures

                                                   SBD PROJECT - POLICE DEPARTMENT

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
PERSONNEL $0 $85,405 $175,934 $271,818 $279,973

CONTRACTUAL $19,004 $32,623 $34,254 $35,967 $37,765

COMMODITIES $24,438 $41,952 $44,050 $46,252 $48,565

CAPITAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ANNUALIZED $0 $12,500 $12,875 $13,261 $13,659
CAPITAL REPL.

TOTAL $43,442 $172,480 $267,113 $367,299 $379,962



Wildhorse Village
Special Business District

Estimated Public Works Expenses

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
PERSONNEL $25,000 $100,000 $103,000 $107,000 $110,000

CONTRACTUAL $0 $100,000 $150,000 $200,000 $225,000

COMMODITIES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CAPITAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ANNUALIZED $0 $12,000 $13,800 $15,870 $18,251
CAPITAL REPL.

TOTAL $25,000 $212,000 $266,800 $322,870 $353,251



Wildhorse Village
Special Business District

Estimated Information Technology Expenses

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
PERSONNEL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CONTRACTUAL $265 $278 $292 $307 $322

COMMODITIES $480 $504 $529 $556 $583

CAPITAL $0 $1,510 $0 $0 $0

ANNUALIZED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
CAPITAL REPL.

TOTAL $745 $2,292 $821 $862 $906



Wildhorse Village
Special Business District

Estimated Park Expenditures

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
PERSONNEL $0 $145,462 $149,826 $154,321 $158,950

CONTRACTUAL $0 $1,080 $1,112 $1,146 $1,180

COMMODITIES $6,400 $29,100 $29,973 $30,872 $31,798

CAPITAL $0 $12,500 $12,875 $13,261 $13,659

ANNUALIZED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
CAPITAL REPL.

TOTAL $6,400 $188,142 $193,786 $199,600 $205,588



Wildhorse Village
Special Business District

Estimated Planning Expenses

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
PERSONNEL $10,133 $10,437 $10,750 $11,073 $11,405

CONTRACTUAL $2,533 $2,609 $2,688 $2,768 $2,851

COMMODITIES $2,533 $2,609 $2,688 $2,768 $2,851

CAPITAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ANNUALIZED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
CAPITAL REPL.

TOTAL $15,200 $15,656 $16,126 $16,609 $17,108



Wildhorse Village
Special Business District

Estimated Finance Admininstration Expenses

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
PERSONNEL $77,400 $81,333 $85,333 $89,667 $94,000

CONTRACTUAL $19,350 $20,333 $21,333 $22,417 $23,500

COMMODITIES $19,350 $20,333 $21,333 $22,417 $23,500

CAPITAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ANNUALIZED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
CAPITAL REPL.

TOTAL $116,100 $122,000 $128,000 $134,500 $141,000



Wildhorse Village
Special Business District

Estimated Revenues

EST. WILDHORSE VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL SBD REVENUE
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

$299,169 $333,869 $334,981 $347,478 $350,952

EST. WILDHORSE VILLAGE COMMERCIAL SBD REVENUE
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

$94,724 $339,188 $570,182 $578,410 $583,599

EST. WILDHORSE VILLAGE TOTAL SBD REVENUE
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

$393,893 $673,057 $905,164 $925,888 $934,552



EXHIBIT 3

District’s Legal Description

(Attached hereto.)



EXHIBIT 3 – Page 1

Legal Description for Special Business District (RPA-2)

RPA 2 Description South – Metes and Bounds

A tract of land being part of U.S. Surveys 123, 415 and 2031, in Township 45 North,
Range 4 East, of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, St. Louis County,
Missouri, and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the western corner of Burkhardt Place as dedicated by Plat Book 283
Page 37 of the above said county records, also being the southern corner of Burkhardt
Place as dedicated by Deed Book 23588 Page 3666 of said county records, being on a
curve to the left having a radius of 775.00 feet; thence the following courses and
distances along the south and west lines of that part of Burkhardt Place, dedicated by
Deed Book 23588 Page 3666: along said curve an arc distance of 342.59 feet, and a
chord which bears South 80 degrees 42 minutes 32 seconds West, 339.80 feet, to a
point of reverse curve having a radius of 405.00 feet; along said curve an arc distance
of 805.88 feet and a chord which bears North 44 degrees 41 minutes 16 seconds West,
679.37 feet to a point of reverse curve having a radius of 925.00 feet; along said curve
an arc distance of 845.69 feet and a chord which bears North 13 degrees 54 minutes 04
seconds West, 816.55 feet to a point of reverse curve having a radius of 405.00 feet;
and along said curve an arc distance of 346.17 feet and a chord which bears North 15
degrees 35 minutes 22 seconds West, 335.72 feet, thence crossing said Burkhardt
Place, South 81 degrees 10 minutes 37 seconds East, 60.00 feet to the east right-of-
way of said Burkhardt Place; thence North 07 degrees 22 minutes 28 seconds East,
9.88 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a radius of 84.61 feet; along said
curve with an arc length of 89.68 feet and a chord which bears North 38 degrees 52
minutes 37 seconds East, 85.54 feet;  thence North 67 degrees 50 minutes 19 seconds
East, 2.34 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a radius of 95.00 feet;
along said curve with an arc length of 24.21 feet and a chord which bears North 75
degrees 08 minutes 22 seconds East, 24.14 feet to its intersection with the south right-
of-way line of Wildhorse Creek Road, variable width; said point also being the beginning
of a curve to the left having a radius of 996.00 feet; thence along said right-of-way line
the following courses and distances: along said curve with an arc length of 493.99 feet
and a chord which bears North 86 degrees 48 minutes 46 seconds East, 488.94 feet;
North 78 degrees 50 minutes 50 seconds East, 52.73 feet to the beginning of a curve to
the right having a radius of 907.00 feet; along said curve with an length of 93.30 and a
chord which bears North 71 degrees 21 minutes 25 seconds East, 93.26 feet;
continuing along last said curve with an arc length of 320.45 feet and a chord which
bears North 84 degrees  25 minutes 32 seconds East, 318.79 feet; North 04 degrees 32
minutes 49 seconds East, 11.26 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a
radius of 95.00 feet; along said curve with an arc length of 9.03 feet and a chord which
bears South 89 degrees 53 minutes 38 seconds East, 9.03 feet, to a curve to the right
having a radius of 919.00 feet; along said curve an arc distance of 444.54 feet and a



EXHIBIT 3 – Page 2

chord which bears South 71 degrees 02 minutes 03 seconds East, 440.22 feet to a
compound curve to the right having a radius of 1,098.00 feet; along said curve an arc
distance of 170.98 feet and a chord which bears South 51 degrees 20 minutes 36
seconds East, 170.81 feet; South 00 degrees 43 minutes 13 seconds West, 4.66 feet;
South 44 degrees 16 minutes 55 seconds East, 216.96 feet; South 33 degrees 41
minutes 57 seconds East, 12.47 feet to a curve to the left having a radius of 2,917.00
feet; along said curve an arc distance of 39.59 feet and a chord which bears South 48
degrees 37 minutes 01 second East, 39.59 feet; South 49 degrees 00 minutes 20
seconds East, 14.56 feet to a curve to the right having a radius of 90.00 feet; along said
curve an arc distance of 9.51 feet and a chord which bears South 45 degrees 58
minutes 48 seconds East, 9.50 feet; South 40 degrees 25 minutes 28 seconds West,
7.17 feet; South 49 degrees 40 minutes 30 seconds East, 112.49 feet to a curve to the
left having a radius of 1,959.86 feet; along said curve an arc distance of 300.82 feet and
a chord which bears South 54 degrees 04 minutes 45 seconds East, 300.52 feet; South
58 degrees 25 minutes 45 seconds East, 164.17 feet to a curve to the left having a
radius of 1,959.86 feet; and along said curve an arc distance of 84.52 feet and a chord
which bears South 59 degrees 40 minutes 44 seconds East, 84.52 feet, to the west right
of way line of Chesterfield Parkway West, variable width; thence the following courses
and distances along said west right of way line: South 17 degrees 50 minutes 47
seconds East, 135.74 feet to a curve to the left having a radius of 1,186.50 feet; along
said curve  an arc distance of 147.63 feet and a chord which bears South 20 degrees
47 minutes 02 seconds West, 147.53 feet to a  compound curve to the left having a
radius of 1,111.48 feet; along said curve an arc distance of 118.41 feet and a chord
which bears South 20 degrees 12 minutes 06 seconds West,118.36 feet, to a
compound curve to the left having a radius of 1,198.50 feet; along said curve an arc
distance of 32.18 feet and a chord which bears South 10 degrees 47 minutes 26
seconds West,32.18 feet; South 10 degrees 03 minutes 12 seconds West, 183.22 feet
to a curve to the right having a radius of 45.00 feet; along said curve an arc distance of
33.64 feet and a chord which bears South 11 degrees 21 minutes 48 seconds East,
32.86 feet; South 10 degrees 03 minutes 12 seconds West, 773.91 feet; South 16
degrees 05 minutes 44 seconds West, 114.01 feet; South 10 degrees 03 minutes 12
seconds West, 94.07 feet to a curve to the right having a radius of 197.50 feet; along
said curve to the right an arc distance of 32.29 feet and a chord which bears South 14
degrees 44 minutes 13 seconds West,32.25 feet to a compound curve to the right
having a radius of 47.50 feet; and along said curve an arc length of 62.88 feet and a
chord which bears South 57 degrees 20 minutes 29 seconds West, 58.38 feet, to the
north right of way line of above said Burkhardt Place; thence crossing Burkhardt Place,
South 07 degrees 02 minutes 44 seconds East, 59.71 feet to the south right of way line
of said Burkhardt Place, said point also being on the beginning of a curve to the right
having a radius of 330.23 feet; thence along said south right-of-way line and its
extension across intersecting streets, the following courses and distances: along said
curve an arc distance of 281.12 feet and a chord which bears North 55 degrees 46
minutes 38 seconds West, 272.71 feet; North 31 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds West,



EXHIBIT 3 – Page 3

472.64 feet to a curve to the left having a radius of 525.00 feet; along said curve an arc
distance of 325.17 feet and a chord which bears North 49 degrees 10 minutes 59
seconds West, 320.00 feet to a compound curve having a radius of 775.00 feet; and
along said curve with an length of 266.48 feet and a chord which bears North 76
degrees 46 minutes 38 seconds West, 265.17 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 3,598,381 square feet or 82.607 acres, more or less.


	Paragraphs 2023-05-23
	Bill 3443 Wh Village Special Business District
	2023-05-15 WHV SBD




